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          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS AND FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Good afternoon. My

          3  name is Erik Martin Dilan, and I am the Chairman of

          4  the Housing and Buildings Committee. And today the

          5  Committee, along with the Fire and Criminal Justice

          6  Services, chaired by my colleague Miguel Martinez,

          7  will conduct an initial hearing on Intro 613, a

          8  local law to amend the Administrative Code of the

          9  City of New York, in relation to the use of

         10  explosives for demolition and excavation.

         11                 Both committees are concerned about

         12  the qualifications and performance of individuals

         13  doing business directly engaged in demolition and

         14  excavation work that require the use of explosives

         15  throughout the City of New York.

         16                 In brief, the legislation would

         17  establish new mandates and notice requirements when

         18  explosives are used for demolition or excavation

         19  purposes, including requiring the Fire Department to

         20  send notice of an application to use explosiveness

         21  to the local elected officials and relevant City

         22  agencies; requiring that a representative of the

         23  Fire Department or the Buildings Department to be

         24  on-site whenever blasting is actually performed, and

         25  also requiring that a structural study of buildings
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          2  within a 250 feet range of the blasting site is

          3  conducted at least 60 days before blasting permit is

          4  issued; and lastly, requiring that the Fire

          5  Department, the Department of Buildings, the

          6  Department of Transportation, the Department of

          7  Environmental Protection and any other agencies that

          8  the Mayor might designate to establish operational

          9  protocols to maximize interagency communication and

         10  devise ways to assess the overall effects of

         11  blasting and other means of construction demolition

         12  and excavation occurring near one another.

         13                 Today the Committee expects to hear

         14  testimony from of this legislation from the Fire

         15  Department, as well as representatives from the real

         16  estate and construction industries. And I guess at

         17  this time if anyone wishes to testify, I'd like to

         18  ask them to please see the Sergeant-At-Arms and fill

         19  out an appearance card and if they could also

         20  silence their cell phones, and if there is a need

         21  for private conversations, if they could take them

         22  outside of the Chamber.

         23                 At this time I'd like to turn it over

         24  to Miguel Martinez for an opening statement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank you,
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          2  Chair Dilan. Good afternoon. I want to thank you,

          3  Chairman Dilan, for having this hearing on Intro.

          4  No. 613, and I want to thank Council Member

          5  Mark-Viverito for sponsoring this legislation, and

          6  our Speaker for her leadership on this and other

          7  important issues.

          8                 Construction in nature is dangerous,

          9  and utilizing explosives in construction increases

         10  that danger. Through a recent event we have

         11  collectively become aware that there is room for

         12  improvement in regulating the use of explosives in

         13  construction. This legislation seeks to make these

         14  improvements. I am looking forward to testimony we

         15  are going to hear on this bill today, and to working

         16  with the Administration and the stakeholders to

         17  ensure that we have only qualified people using

         18  explosives.

         19                 It is imperative that the appropriate

         20  people are aware that work is going to undertake,

         21  that kind of work is going to be undertaken, that

         22  the work is appropriately planned, supervised and

         23  that the work is done in a manner that safeguards

         24  the construction worker, the people in the community

         25  and their properties. At this time, Chairman Dilan,
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          2  I want to again thank you for your leadership in

          3  holding this hearing, and I guess we will open up

          4  this hearing at this time and I am sure that the

          5  sponsor of the bill Mark-Viverito will be joining us

          6  in a moment.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: She'll be joining

          8  us in a moment. Before I turn it over to the Fire

          9  Department, I also have a statement from Council

         10  Member Inez Dickens, who is also very involved with

         11  this issue. This statement will be entered into the

         12  record. There are several Committee hearings going

         13  on, Council Member Dickens, who is not a member of

         14  either Committee, I understand, won't be here today,

         15  but we'll make sure this statement gets entered into

         16  the record as if read in full at this time. And when

         17  Council Member Viverito, who is here, so maybe we'll

         18  take a brief moment to allow her to settle in and

         19  then we'll allow her to make a brief opening

         20  statement on this legislation.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Mr. Chair, can

         22  I introduce the members of the Fire and Criminal

         23  Justice Committee that are here present today?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We'll go through

         25  the introductions as Viverito gets settled in.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: We have Council

          3  Member Jimmy Vacca from the Bronx, Council Member

          4  Addabbo from Queens, Council Member Gentile from

          5  Brooklyn, Council Member Eugene Matthew from

          6  Brooklyn also.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, and the

          8  members of the Housing and Buildings Committee,

          9  Council Member James Vacca as well, Council Member

         10  Rosie Mendez on the end, and Council Member Lew

         11  Fidler.

         12                 Council Member Viverito, if you'd

         13  like to make a brief opening statement.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

         15  you, Chair Dilan and Martinez, for convening this

         16  meeting and on legislation that has been introduced

         17  and that I'm sponsoring in partnership with the

         18  Speaker and many others that I've signed on. And I

         19  want to thank the Speaker for her leadership on this

         20  issue, as well, which as people know, a lot of the

         21  need for this legislation kind of emerged out of a

         22  situation that happened in my district and that

         23  seems to be happening throughout the City as we have

         24  such aggressive and a lot of development happening

         25  throughout, and that's the use of explosives and
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          2  blasting in my district in 97th Street and Columbus

          3  Avenue where we have a large scale development. A

          4  retaining wall collapsed after the use of dynamite

          5  and explosives for laying down the foundation of a

          6  mega project.

          7                 So, this is an issue that happened,

          8  thankfully nobody was seriously hurt, but in looking

          9  at the situation that emerged out of that retaining

         10  wall collapsing, they need to evacuate so many

         11  families and a whole building that was adjacent to

         12  the construction site, you know, it's great that

         13  we're looking at this proactively to ensure that we

         14  really enact legislation and measures in the City to

         15  make sure that this doesn't happen in the future.

         16  This is about safety, this is about security of the

         17  citizens of the City, to ensure that construction

         18  sites and the use of explosives are done in a way

         19  that really takes into account the surrounding

         20  neighbors.

         21                 In looking at the existing laws, it

         22  was also clear that there was no notification system

         23  in place that really was going to alert the

         24  surrounding community in a proactive way as to when

         25  blasting was going to occur.
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          2                 So, this legislation also does

          3  provide with a mechanism by which there will be

          4  community notification, in an aggressive way, that

          5  the surrounding buildings, there will be postings in

          6  the surrounding neighborhood, elected officials will

          7  be contacted. The same way that we're contacted when

          8  there is going to be any film production that is

          9  going to happen in our neighborhoods, we should be

         10  notified when something as serious as blasting and

         11  use of explosives are going to happen.

         12                 So, this legislation is very

         13  comprehensive and is looking at improving upon a

         14  system that I think was a little bit, was a little

         15  bit lax.

         16                 So, I want to thank everyone that's

         17  here, all the representatives that will be speaking

         18  to this issue, and, again, I want to thank everyone

         19  that was involved in helping us draft this

         20  legislation.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thank you,

         22  Council Member Viverito. And then without further

         23  ado, I would like to introduce the first panel.

         24                 We have with us Mr. Thomas Jensen,

         25  the Chief of Fire Prevention. Welcome. Also, Mr.
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          2  Richard Tobin, Assistant Chief of Fire Prevention,

          3  as well as Mr. Bob LiMandri, Robert Limandri, excuse

          4  me, the First Deputy Commissioner at the Department

          5  of Buildings.

          6                 Gentlemen, welcome. And you can begin

          7  or proceed in whatever order you'd like.

          8                 CHIEF JENSEN: Good morning, Chairmen

          9  Dilan, Martinez and Committee members. My name is

         10  Thomas Jensen, and I am the Chief of Fire Prevention

         11  for the New York City Fire Department.

         12                 I am pleased to have the opportunity

         13  to speak with you today about our Department's

         14  oversight of blasting operations in the City and

         15  about Intro. 613, which would amend the provisions

         16  of the Building and Fire Codes that govern blasting

         17  operations and the use of explosives in New York

         18  City.

         19                 I am joined today by Fire Prevention

         20  Assistant Chief Richard Tobin, and by New York City

         21  Department of Buildings First Deputy Commissioner

         22  Robert LiMandri, who are present to answer any

         23  questions you may have.

         24                 I would first like to discuss FDNY

         25  oversight and controls relating to blasting
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          2  operations in New York City, and then I would

          3  briefly discuss the proposed bill.

          4                 The use of explosives in New York

          5  City is highly regulated. In fact, our City's laws

          6  regarding blasting are some of the most stringent in

          7  the nation. Blasting is subject to the oversight of

          8  the FDNY's Explosives Unit. In order to become a

          9  blasting inspector at the FDNY, a person must

         10  provide evidence of extensive experience in the use

         11  of explosives in New York City.

         12                 In addition to holding a valid FDNY

         13  Certificate of Fitness for blasting, they must have

         14  a minimum of eight years experience, including

         15  experience in supervisory and inspection positions.

         16                 Explosives use in blasting operations

         17  in New York City is unlike anywhere else. New York's

         18  high population density, complex infrastructure and

         19  unique urban geography render conventional

         20  construction and demolition training inadequate.

         21  Accordingly, we usually require blasters licensed by

         22  outside jurisdictions to have two years' experience

         23  working with a New York City blaster before we will

         24  consider issuing them a certificate of fitness to

         25  oversee explosive use here.
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          2                 At the beginning of or during a

          3  project, requiring any excavation or building

          4  demolition, a contractor on behalf of a developer or

          5  property owner will determine whether blasting

          6  operations will be needed.

          7                 If so, the contractor contacts the

          8  FDNY Explosives Unit to seek a blasting permit and

          9  provides detailed plans for blasting at the site.

         10                 An FDNY explosive unit inspector then

         11  conducts a pre-site survey noting the type of

         12  project and the site surroundings. Particular

         13  attention is paid to transit and utility resources

         14  in the area, as well as any schools, hospitals,

         15  houses of worship or other sensitive locations

         16  nearby.

         17                 The inspector then arranges an

         18  on-site blasting conference or site inspection with

         19  the contractor. This conference may include the

         20  building owner, Con Ed, KeySpan, or other utility

         21  companies, community groups or representatives from

         22  nearby buildings, especially schools, hospitals or

         23  houses of worship and any City agencies whose

         24  jurisdictions would be affected by the blasting,

         25  such as the Transit Authority, the Department of
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          2  Transportation, or DOB.

          3                 At the site inspection, the FDNY, the

          4  building owner and the contractor review the plans

          5  with invited parties and address any issues or

          6  concerns that arise.

          7                 For example, they may confer with

          8  representatives from a nearby hospital to set

          9  protocols and ensure blasting does not occur while

         10  doctors are performing surgery. The representatives

         11  also discuss how to conduct the blasting with as

         12  little inconvenience as possible to the surrounding

         13  area. If the Explosives Unit Inspector determines

         14  that blasting cannot take place safely, the permit

         15  will be denied.

         16                 After the permit conditions are

         17  determined, a blasting pattern that defines the

         18  depth, number and spacing of the blasting holes and

         19  the configuration of the charge placement is

         20  established.

         21                 Once the blasting pattern has been

         22  determined and all of the conditions are met, the

         23  FDNY Explosives Unit issues the blasting permit.

         24                 Permits are issued for periods of up

         25  to one year.
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          2                 Contractors generally use mechanical

          3  means to excavate a site. When bedrock that the

          4  machinery cannot penetrate is reached, the blasting

          5  contractor will use explosives.

          6                 The blasting may take place on a

          7  regular basis or may occur intermittently over a

          8  series of months as job conditions warrant.

          9                 Most blasting operations last six to

         10  seven months while larger scale jobs last several

         11  years. At the beginning of a job the contractor

         12  secures an insurance policy for the use of

         13  explosives on the site. The first step in that

         14  process is to hire a seismologic monitoring company

         15  whose civil engineer will conduct a pre-blast survey

         16  of the site. This assessment includes detailed

         17  records and photographs of all surrounding buildings

         18  so that if any claim of damage is made, definitive

         19  evidence on the claim's validity is available. This

         20  is undertaken by the contractor and the resulting

         21  survey is kept by the contractor. The City is not

         22  involved with this process. The FDNY explosive units

         23  oversight of blasting operations does not end with

         24  the issuance of permits. A few days before blasting

         25  operations are to begin, the contractor notifies the
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          2  explosives unit of his or her intent to commence

          3  blasting. The contractor also posts notices around

          4  the area of the site to alert neighboring homes and

          5  businesses to the upcoming blasting operations and

          6  works with any locations in need of special

          7  attention to ensure that blasting operations are as

          8  undisruptive as possible.

          9                 On the day before blasting is to

         10  begin, as a safety and control measure, the FDNY's

         11  chief blasting inspector contacts the explosives

         12  vendor to release the explosives to the job site.

         13  Our explosives unit is in contact with the vendor

         14  every day that blasting takes place in the City so

         15  that we can ensure proper oversight of every job.

         16                 At the end of each workday, any

         17  unused explosives are removed from the job site and

         18  returned to the vendors secure facility via GPS

         19  track vehicles.

         20                 These safety measures are in place to

         21  ensure that explosives will not fall into the hands

         22  of anyone who would use them improperly.

         23                 We also require that a seismologist

         24  be on site for each blast and maintain seismic

         25  readings. The FDNY regularly appraises these
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          2  readings. If the seismic affects of the blast

          3  approach a certain predetermined maximum level, work

          4  is automatically stopped pending a review by the

          5  blaster and the FDNY Explosives Unit and adjustments

          6  are made to the blasting pattern as necessary.

          7                 In most cases the maximum allowable

          8  seismic reading for detonations is two-peak particle

          9  velocity or a vibration speed of two inches per

         10  second. The FDNY calls for blasts that fall far

         11  under this limit, generally in the range of 1.0 to

         12  1.3 peak particle velocity.

         13                 Again, given New York City's dense

         14  urban environment, we believe this provides enhanced

         15  safeguards for the buildings and infrastructure

         16  surrounding a blasting site.

         17                 On the first day of any blasting we

         18  require a technical representative from the

         19  explosives manufacturer to visit the site to conduct

         20  a training session on the specific explosives being

         21  used. Along with a representative from the explosive

         22  manufacturer, an FDNY inspector observes the first

         23  test blast and makes adjustments to the strength of

         24  the charges as needed. This ensures that the least

         25  powerful charge necessary to accomplish the job is
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          2  used.

          3                 On each day the explosives are to be

          4  used, an FDNY explosives Unit Inspector visits the

          5  site and discusses the specifics of the day's

          6  blasting with the blaster and the contractor. The

          7  inspector verifies that the sites explosives

          8  magazine keeper, the person responsible for the

          9  storage of these explosives on the site has a valid

         10  FDNY issued certificate of fitness and that the

         11  identification numbers for the explosives and the

         12  amounts of the explosives on the vendors' invoices

         13  match the explosives present on site.

         14                 The inspector ensures that the

         15  charges employed are within the guidelines for

         16  blasting vibrations. He or she also inspects

         17  controls in place to protect the area from flyrock,

         18  which is airborne rock propelled by the blast. The

         19  inspector checks that proper protective mats are in

         20  place to prevent flyrock and that there are

         21  arrangements for halting vehicular and pedestrian

         22  traffic during blasting.

         23                 Finally, the local FDNY company

         24  visits the site daily to ensure that no explosives

         25  are being improperly stored overnight.
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          2                 The fire company confirms at the end

          3  of the day that the explosive magazines are open and

          4  empty, signaling that any unused explosives have

          5  been removed to the vendor's facility. Taken as a

          6  whole, these oversight measures and strict controls,

          7  many of which go above and beyond current law,

          8  ensure not only that the contractors personnel are

          9  qualified to use explosives, but also that the

         10  individual blasts are performed properly and safely.

         11                 We believe this process provides us

         12  the safe use of explosives and protects the workers

         13  at the site and the local communities.

         14                 I would now like to discuss Intro.

         15  613, the legislation being considered today. Use of

         16  explosives is an important component of many

         17  construction and demolition projects throughout the

         18  City. It is vital to the safety and security of all

         19  New York City residents and visitors that explosives

         20  are used in the safest manner possible. We believe

         21  that Intro. 613 is well intentioned but reflects a

         22  fundamental misunderstanding about the use of

         23  explosives in New York City and the controls in

         24  place to govern that activity.

         25                 Intro. 613 weakens existing City law
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          2  or regulations. In addition, many of the bill's key

          3  proponents are already FDNY practice and as such are

          4  being included in the Fire Code revision that we

          5  will bring before the Council in the very near

          6  future.

          7                 While we believe Intro. 613 could be

          8  amended extensively to address our concerns, at this

          9  time we oppose the bill and urge the Council to

         10  consider instead adopting those provisions of the

         11  current draft Fire Code that addresses blasting

         12  operations.

         13                 We would be willing to offer amended

         14  legislation that would incorporate the blasting

         15  provisions of the proposed new Fire Code. Some

         16  concerns we have about Intro. 613 as currently

         17  drafted are as follows: Intro 613 proposes that a

         18  Certificate of Fitness or similar authorizing

         19  document issued by an agency of the United States or

         20  New York State can be substitute for an FDNY issued

         21  Certificate of Fitness for explosive use. The

         22  Department strongly opposes this.

         23                 As I discussed earlier, we currently

         24  require applicants for Certificates of Fitness for

         25  blasting to have relevant experience within New York
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          2  City. No substitutions are permitted, regardless of

          3  how many similar authorizations for explosives use

          4  the applicant may have. We cannot support a bill

          5  that weakens our current practice.

          6                 The legislation calls for

          7  notifications to the surrounding area when a

          8  permanent application is submitted. This makes

          9  little sense in reality. We do not think

         10  notifications should be required until a permit has

         11  actually been issued or when the blasting actually

         12  begins.

         13                 Intro. 613 also requires notice be

         14  given to neighboring buildings within 250 feet of

         15  the job site before each blast.

         16                 While the apartment agrees that

         17  advance notice should be provided, we believe that

         18  the current 100 foot notification radius is

         19  sufficient. We do not feel that additional

         20  notifications would be beneficial. The legislation's

         21  proposal that any FDNY inspector be present -- that

         22  an FDNY inspector be present during all blasting

         23  operations is simply not feasible given the number

         24  of inspectors we have, and in our estimation, would

         25  not enhance the safety of the site.
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          2                 We believe that numerous oversights

          3  and safeguards already in place make this

          4  unnecessary.

          5                 Intro. 613 also proposes that

          6  explosives permits be issued for only three months

          7  at a time with the possibility of extending them up

          8  to one year. Most construction of demolition jobs

          9  that require blasting last longer than this. We

         10  believe that the one-year time frame works well

         11  because of the many variables involved with blasting

         12  and we do not believe a shorter time frame would

         13  necessarily enhance site safety.

         14                 While we are open to discussion for a

         15  shorter period of issuing permits, industry

         16  representatives may feel differently.

         17                 The drafters of the legislation may

         18  have had reasons, unclear to us, for including the

         19  list of agencies and other entities that are to be

         20  notified during the permit process and/or blasting

         21  operations. We believe this list is too broad.

         22                 Unless specific aspects of a project

         23  require the input of the Department of

         24  Transportation, we do not think it is necessary to

         25  include that agency in all meetings and site visits.
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          2  The FDNY is the only City agency with the expertise

          3  to monitor and oversee the use of explosives. It is

          4  unnecessary to require other agencies' input or

          5  authorization unless a proposed blasting job would

          6  affect their specific jurisdictions and authority.

          7                 For example, the bill would require

          8  several City agencies to review and approve a

          9  structural survey report for the area surrounding

         10  the blast site. This is unnecessary, since many of

         11  the agencies which would have to be notified,

         12  notably the Department of Environmental Protection

         13  and the Department of Transportation, do not have

         14  the expertise to analyze and improve such a

         15  document.

         16                 We would, however, support

         17  legislation calling for a copy of the structural

         18  survey report to be kept at the job site so that it

         19  can be easily accessed in the event of an emergency.

         20                 Increasing communication and

         21  information sharing between the FDNY and DOB is

         22  something the two agencies continually work toward

         23  and we have instituted several ongoing initiatives

         24  establishing those links.

         25                 However, DOB and other agencies do
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          2  not employ explosives experts and therefore would

          3  not necessarily be able to enhance safety at these

          4  sites. Rather, their roles are to advise and oversee

          5  those aspects of sites within their respective

          6  jurisdictions.

          7                 For instance, DOB's Building

          8  Enforcement Safety Team visits building sites

          9  regularly to monitor aspects of these jobs that

         10  affect DOB's areas of expertise, including

         11  Building's structural stability. As part of our

         12  continuous efforts to increase interagency

         13  communication, our current operating procedure

         14  requires us to notify DOB:

         15                 - upon receipt of notification from a

         16  blasting contractor of anticipated filing of a

         17  permit application or when a permit application is

         18  filed, which ever is received first.

         19                 - also, of all permit job site

         20  inspections to afford DOB the opportunity to attend

         21  such inspections.

         22                 - upon the issuance of a permit.

         23                 - of the date for commencement of

         24  blasting operations, and,

         25                 - upon receipt of notification by the
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          2  blasting contractor or a Reportable Seismic

          3  Measurement.

          4                 In addition, both DOB and our

          5  Department will notify the other as needed regarding

          6  reports or complaints of physical damage or other

          7  safety concerns resulting from blasting operations.

          8                 We would welcome the opportunity to

          9  take the Speaker and Committee members on a tour of

         10  a blasting site in the near future. Witnessing

         11  blasting operations in progress will allow you to

         12  see firsthand the extensive safety and security

         13  measures taken at these sites throughout the City.

         14  We look forward to working with the Council in the

         15  coming months on both the revised Fire Code and an

         16  amended version of Intro. 613.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         18  speak with you today.

         19                 We would be happy to answer any

         20  questions you have at this time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, first

         22  of all, for sharing the procedures that the agency

         23  has in place when it comes to blasting and

         24  demolition. Obviously, I would imagine that no one

         25  here in this Committee is a demolition or explosives
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          2  expert, so we might be in another line of work

          3  unless someone here did something in the military

          4  that I don't know about.

          5                 But before I get into questions, I

          6  want to take time to introduce some of the members

          7  who have joined us. A member of the Housing and

          8  Buildings Committee, Council Member Tony Avella, as

          9  well as Council Member James Oddo. And I guess

         10  before I get into some of the background questions

         11  that I had, I just wanted to get the Fire

         12  Department's take on what went wrong on July 27th of

         13  this year in Upper Manhattan. I think most of the

         14  people who read the papers understand that there was

         15  an accident and that's kind of the impetus of the

         16  legislation before us, and I'd like to hear for the

         17  record from the Fire Department what went wrong on

         18  that day?

         19                 CHIEF JENSEN: Well, I believe the

         20  Building Department is conducting an extensive

         21  investigation. I think it really should be

         22  Commissioner LiMandri's call on that, on the

         23  investigation.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         25  Thank you, Chief.
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          2                 We have employed actually a team of

          3  experts, certainly internal to the Buildings

          4  Department forensic engineers. We have included the

          5  blasting experts at FDNY and we've actually provided

          6  for a consultant, a geologist to work with us.

          7                 We expect that within probably three

          8  weeks we expect to publish a report which will give

          9  details of what occurred that day and the events

         10  leading up to that accident and the thoughts to the

         11  causality of the accident.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: At this time

         13  you're not aware of exactly what went wrong? It's

         14  still under investigation and you're waiting for a

         15  report back to give you an exact detail of what

         16  occurred that day?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         18  Yes, it's a complicated response in that what we

         19  needed to do was to survey the existing conditions,

         20  we needed to review the plans that were submitted

         21  and actually review if the plans were built

         22  according to plan. Then what we needed to do is we

         23  needed to excavate and repair and do some additional

         24  geological assessments, and that's why it's taking

         25  so long.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. We've also

          3  been joined by Council Member Jackson, who is a

          4  member of the Housing and Buildings Committee, and

          5  Council Member Eric Gioia.  Excuse me. I didn't see

          6  him.

          7                 I want to ask just in general how

          8  many blasting permits does the Department issue on

          9  average in any given year? Let's say the last year

         10  that you have full data.

         11                 CHIEF JENSEN: On average about 25

         12  permits a year issued in the whole City. I think

         13  this year we're a little behind, we're up to 17.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And I guess

         15  as older buildings are being removed, and the trend

         16  is we're making way for newer high-rise buildings,

         17  do you anticipate an increase in demand for blasting

         18  permits as we go forward?

         19                 CHIEF JENSEN: I think we anticipate

         20  the demand to at least be constant, possibly

         21  increase. It depends on the site of the buildings.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And again,

         23  at this time, is notice required to be given to

         24  tenants of adjacent occupied buildings immediately

         25  prior to blasting, requesting that they vacate a
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          2  building?

          3                 CHIEF JENSEN: Notice is given that

          4  blasting occurs. Not that they should vacate the

          5  building, no.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: There has never

          7  been an instance where you felt you needed to vacate

          8  the surrounding?

          9                 CHIEF JENSEN: I think if we thought

         10  we might have to vacate the building, we will not do

         11  the blasting.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: You would stop the

         13  blasting. Okay.

         14                 Okay, is notice required to be given

         15  to any other party?

         16                 CHIEF JENSEN: Well, all the parties

         17  in the surrounding area, usually the 100 foot,

         18  basically that's a general figure. And as I said,

         19  any utilities, if it's near a subway line, transit

         20  and so forth. Anyone who needs to be notified is

         21  notified in the area. That's all conducted at the

         22  pre-site inspection.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, and about

         24  how many days in actual blasting are there in a

         25  typical year?
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          2                 CHIEF JENSEN: It really depends on

          3  the job site. Some jobs need very little blasting.

          4  It's only when they hit hard rock that machines

          5  can't take care of. Other jobs, I believe the

          6  extensive to the subway lines and water tunnel has

          7  much more continuous blasting.

          8                 It really depends on the job.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Obviously then it

         10  would be common sense and also I guess agency policy

         11  where you would minimize the amount of blasting as

         12  much as possible?

         13                 CHIEF JENSEN: Yes. I've been told,

         14  I'm not a blasting expert either, that blasting is

         15  complicated and expensive. It's used when it has to

         16  be used. Mechanical means would be used normally and

         17  blasting is only used when it's necessary.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. Is the

         19  Office of Emergency Management, or anyone in the

         20  Mayor's Office given notice when blasting occurs?

         21                 CHIEF JENSEN: No, I don't believe

         22  they are.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I want to talk a

         24  little bit about permits and certificates of

         25  fitness. I guess what is the process for obtaining a
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          2  certificate of fitness relating to the use of

          3  explosives?

          4                 If you could just identify yourself

          5  again?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: I'm Richard

          7  Tobin. I'm the Assistant Chief of Fire Prevention.

          8                 The Certificate of Fitness process in

          9  New York City is rather complex. There are several

         10  different levels of certificate of fitness given. In

         11  order to qualify for the Certificate of Fitness, a

         12  blaster has to have at least two years of experience

         13  working under a New York City licensed blaster, then

         14  he has to sit for a test, and he has to qualify

         15  through the test. He has to have two letters from

         16  certified blasters in the City attesting to his

         17  background and he has to undergo a background check

         18  through the ATF for fingerprints for accruing a

         19  record.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And I guess

         21  what existing disciplinary procedures exist if an

         22  individual conducts blasting work without the

         23  certificate?

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Without a

         25  certificate?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Yes.

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: We haven't had

          4  any instance of somebody conducting a blasting

          5  without --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: So there is zero

          7  instance?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Zero instance

          9  of somebody without a certificate.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: All right. So

         11  right now then that would mean that there is no

         12  disciplinary procedures, right? People generally

         13  follow the law?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: We have cases

         15  where we have stopped blasting to investigate. If

         16  there were broken windows in an area or something,

         17  it would stop. And we've had cases where ATF has

         18  done a background investigation, uncovered a

         19  misdemeanor on somebody's record, and we've

         20  suspended their license pending the outcome of the

         21  investigation, but we haven't had to revoke any.

         22                 CHIEF JENSEN: I would just like to

         23  say if the blaster doesn't follow our regulations,

         24  we will pull the certificate of fitness and he will

         25  not be allowed to work in the field. Basically we
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          2  will stop him from working.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. How many

          4  applications for the use of explosives have been

          5  rejected in the past three years?

          6                 CHIEF JENSEN: I'm not sure we have

          7  that specific information at that time, but we can

          8  get back to you with it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Yes, we'd

         10  certainly appreciate that.

         11                 I have some more questions, but I

         12  think at this time I'll turn it over to the Co-chair

         13  of this hearing, Council Member Martinez.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 Chief, you mentioned in your

         17  testimony that in order for someone to be authorized

         18  by the Department to do blasting, they must show

         19  extensive experience in the use of explosives in New

         20  York City, in addition to holding the valid FDNY

         21  certificate of fitness for blasting. They must have

         22  the minimum eight years experience, including,

         23  experience of supervisory and inspection positions.

         24                 And you also mentioned that you

         25  oppose the bill because you state that the bill
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          2  seeks to substitute the Certificate of Fitness or

          3  similar authorizing document, substituting the

          4  Certificate of Fitness by authorizing document

          5  issued by agencies of the United States or New York

          6  State. Is that right? In your testimony?

          7                 CHIEF JENSEN: Yes, we feel that our

          8  requirements, our Certificate of Fitness and our

          9  requirements of experience working under a certified

         10  blaster in New York City far exceeds accepting a

         11  certificate from outside the City where blasting is

         12  not as complex.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: What's the

         14  difference if you have -- whatever certification

         15  from a United States agency or another State agency,

         16  what's the difference between that certification

         17  that one has in the use of explosives as opposed to

         18  the certification that the Department issues here.

         19                 I mean, what is so significant or

         20  authentic of the permit that you issue as opposed to

         21  any other State agency or federal agency?

         22                 CHIEF JENSEN: Well, you may have a

         23  State permit blasting rock Upstate, which is much

         24  less complicated than blasting in the City of New

         25  York in close proximity to other buildings.
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          2                 That's why we do not think blasters

          3  that only have a State certificate should work in

          4  the City.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: So, if I have

          6  certification from the State, I need to also prove

          7  that I have the eight years of experience in the

          8  City also?

          9                 CHIEF JENSEN: No, the eight years is

         10  an FDNY inspector. That's not for a blaster. The

         11  blaster has to take a Certificate of Fitness test,

         12  work in the City under a certified blaster for two

         13  years so he is experienced working in the New York

         14  City environment before he can be a blaster on his

         15  own.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: That's for the

         17  blaster?

         18                 CHIEF JENSEN: Blaster.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: And how many

         20  inspectors do we have?

         21                 CHIEF JENSEN: I believe we have seven

         22  inspectors.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Seven?

         24                 CHIEF JENSEN: Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: And how many
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          2  permits are issued you said, usually in a year?

          3                 CHIEF JENSEN: This year we have

          4  issued 17 permits.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: And is there a

          6  particular reason why the number is so low?

          7                 CHIEF JENSEN: Basically they're

          8  experienced. Blasting doesn't occur all over the

          9  City every day, and with our seven highly-skilled

         10  inspectors, we're able to cover the jobs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: And can you

         12  tell me a little bit more specifically about -- I

         13  don't know about blasting, but you mentioned that in

         14  New York, per inches, I was just curious about this,

         15  I mean what does it mean for a building that there

         16  is blasting taking place and you state in your

         17  testimony that the FDNY calls for blasting that

         18  falls well under the limit, generally a range of 1.0

         19  or 1.3. What is exactly -- what's the damage on

         20  that?

         21                 CHIEF JENSEN: The limit that's set by

         22  the Bureau of Mines is two, and we set our limit

         23  much below that, and even the two limit is very

         24  conservative. It has to do with the, I'm not a civil

         25  engineer, but it has to do with the seismic readings
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          2  on the machines that we put all around the site on

          3  the buildings.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: But in layman

          5  terms, if there is a building standing here and

          6  we're doing blasting adjacent to that building, what

          7  impact will it have on the standing building if I do

          8  two as opposed to 1.3; do you understand what I

          9  mean?

         10                 Would the windows blow up?

         11                 CHIEF JENSEN: No. I think the two

         12  reading is also a very conservative reading,

         13  probably nothing would happen until you got much

         14  higher, but we keep it much lower, but two has been

         15  set by the Bureau of Mines over many years as the

         16  minimum reading that's recorded on these machines

         17  and we actually put our line lower than that to be

         18  extra safe.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: And finally,

         20  the incident that occurred, I believe it was in

         21  Council Member Mark-Viverito -- were all the

         22  protocol that you state in your testimony, in terms

         23  of having I would say the pre-blasting conference

         24  where everybody is present, did that take place?

         25                 CHIEF JENSEN: Yes, all those
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          2  protocols were in place. Since that time we have

          3  increased our protocols with the Department of

          4  Buildings for more information sharing, but all the

          5  other protocols were in place.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank you. I'm

          7  going to stop here and let some of my colleagues. I

          8  know they have some questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, we have

         10  Council Member Fidler followed by Council Member

         11  Mark-Viverito.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman. All of this talk of hard rock and glass, I

         14  think I'm back in college, so I'm going to try and

         15  get back into the here and now.

         16                 I put my name on Intro. 613, but I

         17  have to tell you that -- and we did it for what you

         18  describe as well-intentioned reasons, you know,

         19  we're very concerned about what happened in Council

         20  Member Mark-Viverito's district.

         21                 Intro. 613 does many different

         22  individual things to the process. Are there any

         23  things in 613 that we are doing that we do not

         24  object to?

         25                 I believe the increased communication
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          2  between Department of Buildings and the Fire

          3  Department is definitely, definitely good. We've

          4  been doing it already and it's a good step.

          5                 Some of the other points I think

          6  aren't necessary because I think many of them are

          7  actually being done by us already. Maybe not to the

          8  extent that the intro goes for.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, could

         10  you, I mean if you can't do it right now, but if you

         11  could get to this Committee a list of those things

         12  that are in the bill that you already do voluntarily

         13  but not because they're required, and the things

         14  that this bill suggests that you do that you're not

         15  doing that you don't object to, I think that would

         16  be helpful.

         17                 The other question I have is that you

         18  mention in your testimony that the proposed Fire

         19  Code includes a number of things regarding blasting

         20  that this bill does not. Can you tell us what some

         21  of those things are? And is there any reason why we

         22  should not pass those now?

         23                 CHIEF JENSEN: The new Fire Code takes

         24  a lot of our current regulations, plus other

         25  regulations from the International Fire Code. We've
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          2  tried to combine the best of them. One point is that

          3  not only are we going to need a certificate for the

          4  blaster, we're also going to ask for a certificate

          5  of the contractor of the blaster also. That's one

          6  additional point that the new Fire Code will be

          7  bringing forward. There is a number of technical

          8  aspects in the new Fire Code in the chapter on

          9  blasting.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And when are

         11  we going to see the proposed new Fire Code?

         12                 CHIEF JENSEN: Hopefully in a few

         13  weeks it will be out, and we hope it will be

         14  discussed by the Committee. I believe there is going

         15  to be a presentation to the Committee shortly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right.

         17  Well, clearly because of the recent events there is

         18  some pressure I guess on us to make sure that the

         19  blasting that is occurring in the City is absolutely

         20  safe, and, you know, I recognize that we can take

         21  all kinds of safeguards and precautions and

         22  something can still go wrong in that people aren't

         23  perfect, and, you know, the ground beneath us isn't

         24  always constant. So, I would suggest that the

         25  provisions of the Fire Code that are going to be
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          2  proposed that relate to blasting perhaps be

          3  forwarded to us as well, and that we might actually

          4  move on those more quickly than the Fire Code, which

          5  I'm sure is going to take some time, because I'm

          6  sure it's rather extensive.

          7                 CHIEF JENSEN: There were over 40

          8  chapters in the new Fire Code, blasting is one of

          9  them and is very comprehensive and I'm sure we'll be

         10  happy to forward that as soon as possible.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And apparently

         12  the new Fire Code wouldn't take effect until July of

         13  next year anyway, so I think that just adds to the

         14  imperative. So, I would ask that in addition to the

         15  response that I asked for originally regarding 613,

         16  that you give us the proposed provisions of the Fire

         17  Code for blasting so that we can move on it much

         18  more quickly than that.

         19                 CHIEF JENSEN: That would be fine. We

         20  have no objection to that at all.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         23  Viverito.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

         25  you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 You know, I want to thank you for you

          3  testimony and I want to thank you for being here and

          4  clearly we all have an interest in the safety of our

          5  citizens. But I do have to take some issue with some

          6  of the testimony in terms of what you currently are

          7  doing. And I'm just going to take my example as, you

          8  know, my example in terms of what happened in my

          9  district and the incident in my district.

         10                 You know, the development or the

         11  construction site that I'm talking about is a super

         12  block. It is three full City blocks. 97th Street to

         13  100th Street on Columbus Avenue. There are two

         14  residential buildings right adjacent, I mean on top

         15  of the construction site, and so the day that the

         16  retaining wall collapsed, residents in the building

         17  that was evacuated said that they had heard up to

         18  ten blasts happening simultaneously, one right after

         19  the other right after the other right after the

         20  other after the other, to the point where they got

         21  very much afraid and then we had the retaining wall

         22  collapse and people had to be evacuated. A lot of

         23  the people in the building are elderly residents who

         24  had been living decades in that community. It's a

         25  planned community, so a lot of people have been
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          2  there for many years. And, you know, I take issue

          3  what what you say in your testimony about that the

          4  inspector arranges on-site blasting conferences, you

          5  say it may include, obviously nothing is mandated, I

          6  think we're trying to mandate certain things in the

          7  legislation, may include building owner, Con Ed,

          8  KeySpan, other utility companies. Their community

          9  board was not invited to the pre conference in that

         10  case, the school that is on the corner was not

         11  invited to that pre conference, you have a health

         12  clinic across the street from the blasting site, was

         13  not invited to the conference that I'm aware of, the

         14  tenant association, the two buildings that are right

         15  adjacent to the site were not invited to any sort of

         16  pre conference. There was no level of engagement

         17  with the immediate surrounding community. You are

         18  not mandated to do so, right? So, I don't think it

         19  is something that really factors as prevalent and

         20  predominantly in your decision-making.

         21                 Are you aware of the particular

         22  circumstances surrounding this particular

         23  construction site, and what measures were taken to

         24  engage the community, who was involved in these pre

         25  conferences?
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          2                 CHIEF JENSEN: No, I'm not.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

          4  you know, obviously I would like to know if that

          5  information can be gotten, you know, provided to me

          6  with regards to this particular site, what level of

          7  engagement of the surrounding community did, in

          8  fact, take place, while the use of explosives were

          9  being implemented?

         10                 Again, we're trying to increase the

         11  level of notification and communication with the

         12  surrounding community.

         13                 In particular, you know, I find it a

         14  little bit difficult at times that we would have

         15  representatives here to say that our legislation is

         16  deficient in certain areas, yet you're not able to

         17  provide specific data that would substantiate your

         18  claim.

         19                 And you're talking about the fact

         20  that you think that notifying the community what an

         21  application is put in is premature, yet you were

         22  asked by the Chair to let us know how many permits

         23  in fact have been, or how many applications have

         24  been denied and you can't get us that information or

         25  you don't have it on hand.
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          2                 I mean, you're making claims that our

          3  legislation and the intent is deficient, yet you're

          4  not providing the facts to substantiate your

          5  argument, and that I have an issue with.

          6                 So, that's one issue. I think one

          7  data that you need to provide is, in fact, how many

          8  applications in the past three years have been

          9  submitted and of those applications submitted, how

         10  many in fact have been denied? From your

         11  recollection, in the past year at least, how many

         12  applications that have been submitted for blasting

         13  have been denied?

         14                 CHIEF JENSEN: In the past two years

         15  of 2006, there were a total of 27 applications, none

         16  were denied. In 2007 to date, 14.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: In

         18  2007, 14.

         19                 CHIEF JENSEN: Fourteen.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: And how

         21  many have been submitted?

         22                 CHIEF JENSEN: That's how many have

         23  been submitted at this point. We haven't had any

         24  denial.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: So,
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          2  2007, 14 submitted applications, no denials. 2006

          3  how many?

          4                 CHIEF JENSEN: Twenty-seven.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO:

          6  Submitted. How many denials?

          7                 CHIEF JENSEN: No denials.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay.

          9  So, we have a pattern here of not denying any

         10  permits, so why would it be premature to notify the

         11  surrounding community when an application is

         12  submitted?

         13                 And how about 2005? Do you have data

         14  for 2005?

         15                 CHIEF JENSEN: We don't have the data

         16  for 2005. We could get back to you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay,

         18  I'm seeing a pattern. No denials, so I don't think

         19  then it is premature or deficient legislation to in

         20  fact notify the community when an application is

         21  submitted.

         22                 So that's one issue of your claim

         23  that our legislation is deficient.

         24                 The other thing is about the

         25  community notification and the 250 foot perimeter.
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          2  As I mentioned, you know, on this particular block,

          3  and, again, it's a mega project, Superblock, three

          4  City blocks, people over two avenues on Central Park

          5  West were feeling the vibrations of the blasting,

          6  and that's more than 250 feet. So, again, I think

          7  this notification and the 250 perimeter I think is

          8  very much substantiated by, at least in my

          9  experience, with what people in the surrounding

         10  community were sharing with me. I get calls, my

         11  office probably gets ten, 15 complaints a day at the

         12  site, not only on the blasting issue but many other

         13  issues. So, it's very warranted.

         14                 And as I mentioned, you've got a

         15  school in the surrounding perimeter, you've got a

         16  community clinic across the street, these are

         17  primarily elderly residents. So, you talk about this

         18  very rigorous standard by which all of these other

         19  considerations are taken into account and in this

         20  particular case, that this extensive level of

         21  blasting is allowed in this type of a community is

         22  really something that I don't understand. I really

         23  don't understand. It was really something that is

         24  open ended, in terms of the blasting that was

         25  happening. I think the fact that we are talking
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          2  about notifying the community boards, notifying the

          3  elected officials, notifying community clinics, the

          4  health institutions, public schools, the residents

          5  in the surrounding area is not much to ask for. I

          6  think it's the least that we can do if we want to

          7  provide for the safety and the security of all of

          8  the residents that live in the immediate area.

          9                 I get pretty ample notification when

         10  streets are going to be blocked and when streets are

         11  going to be closed when there is going to be any

         12  sort of videotaping from the Mayor's Office of Film,

         13  very, very thorough. It happens to the community

         14  board, elected officials, I think that we should be

         15  expecting that for blasting, which is something that

         16  very much impacts our communities in a much more

         17  detrimental way.

         18                 So, I wanted to just mention

         19  something. I will ask you another question about the

         20  info sharing. Let me get back to your testimony a

         21  minute. I just lost my place here.

         22                 So, in terms of the inspectors on

         23  site, I guess that was the question, you're saying

         24  that at the beginning of the day an inspector goes

         25  by and basically they just talk to the staff on site
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          2  and then they leave before blasting occurs? Explain

          3  to me the inspector's role when they get onto a

          4  site.

          5                 CHIEF JENSEN: I'm not an inspector,

          6  but I believe they go over the site for the day,

          7  what the job entails, what they expect to do with

          8  the blasting, they check their calculations and they

          9  check previous records.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay.

         11  And then once that's done, they probably leave

         12  before the blasting begins, correct?

         13                 CHIEF JENSEN: Sometimes they're there

         14  to see the first blast, sometimes they leave I'm

         15  told.

         16                 They're not there all day at every

         17  job to observe every blast, no.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Right,

         19  we have seven inspectors. That's it for the City,

         20  right?

         21                 CHIEF JENSEN: That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: With

         23  regards to the on-site, with the question I have,

         24  how often are violations issued or permits revoked?

         25  I mean, if the inspector is not there, if there is
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          2  any violation, how do you determine that?

          3                 CHIEF JENSEN: We have the records

          4  from the seismic readings that can determine if the

          5  blasts are not done properly.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: So,

          7  what is the seismic -- I don't get it. I'm not a

          8  technician, I don't understand this. What is a

          9  seismic mechanism? How does that measure?

         10                 CHIEF JENSEN: The pressure of the

         11  blast, any vibration in any of the buildings

         12  basically. I'm not an engineer either, a civil

         13  engineer. But these are measurements that are very

         14  commonly done on all these sites and they measure

         15  any vibration around in any of the buildings. That's

         16  how the blasts are controlled.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: I'm

         18  just trying to understand it. So then when you guys

         19  issue, when a permit is issued for the use of

         20  explosives, do you determine -- how specific is the

         21  permit? Is it just open ended to say you can use

         22  explosives, or does it really tell you how much

         23  explosives you can use? How many blasts? I'm just

         24  trying to understand.

         25                 CHIEF JENSEN: I think that's much
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          2  more complicated than I really know or can explain,

          3  but it's the determination of the engineers on the

          4  site and the blasters, how best to do the blast, the

          5  configuration of the blast, how much explosive to

          6  use to keep -- they try to keep the blast as light

          7  as possible and able to do the job and to keep the

          8  readings on any of the recorders at a low level so

          9  as not to affect any of the buildings.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Now,

         11  what is the time frame during a day that blasting is

         12  permitted that explosives are able to be used? From

         13  what time to what time?

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: During a

         15  normal blasting operation during the week they

         16  choose from 8:00 in the morning until 6:00 p.m. at

         17  the latest.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: So,

         19  technically if somebody has a permit and is doing

         20  construction on a site, they would be able to use

         21  explosives from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. consecutively

         22  if they needed to?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Only during.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: No, I

         25  understand only weekdays. But can you imagine, if
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          2  you are a retired person living in a building

          3  adjacent to a construction site, and if you have

          4  blasting happening from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.,

          5  don't you think that's disruptive?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: I don't

          7  believe you're ever going to have continuous

          8  blasting from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

         10  on the day the retaining wall collapsed that is in

         11  fact what the residents were saying.

         12                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: I don't think

         13  that the record will support that. We can bring the

         14  records in for the number of shots that day. I do

         15  not believe it was ten hours of continuous -- six

         16  hours of continuous blasts.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Is that

         18  information available now, or do we have to wait for

         19  the investigation to be completed?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: We can get

         21  that information right now and we can get right back

         22  to you with that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: I'd

         24  like to know, at least for that week.

         25                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Because we
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          2  have records of every shot that they fired during

          3  the day. We have records of every amount of

          4  explosives they used during the day. And it's an

          5  intermittent. It's not a constant boom boom boom

          6  boom boom.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: No, I

          8  understand that. I mean you have to set up and I can

          9  understand that.

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: It's not just

         11  set up, it depends on the rock. As they're digging

         12  through, you have to understand, the whole blasting

         13  operation is based on the geology of New York. More

         14  than 90 percent of the blasting is going to take

         15  place in either the Borough of Manhattan or the

         16  Bronx because of the geology. There is no blasting

         17  that usually takes place, not absolutely none, but

         18  very, very little in Queens, very, very little in

         19  Staten Island, just because of the nature.

         20                 All of the high bedrock is in

         21  Manhattan and the Bronx. When they hit the rock,

         22  they like to use the hydraulic hammers. It's a lot

         23  easier for them. They only blast when they hit

         24  particularly hard rock. Up until then they'll use

         25  the hydraulic hammer. When they do do the blasting,
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          2  they usually do what they call decking. They drill

          3  down, they put the stronger charge at the bottom. As

          4  you work your way up, the charge is less and less so

          5  that it just cracks the rock at the top and it kicks

          6  out at the bottom.

          7                 On top of that what it has done, the

          8  blasting is covered with the mats. There's a

          9  rubberized -- it has a heavy, heavy rope with tire

         10  on it and then they drop the heavy steel mats on top

         11  of that. The blast itself takes less than a second.

         12  So, to have constant, constant, constant blasting

         13  just is not conceivable.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

         15  then I would like that information for at least the

         16  week that this incident happened.

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Those records

         18  we can give you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay,

         20  that would be great, because I didn't know that that

         21  was available.

         22                 And, also, specifically, I'm just

         23  going to be specific in terms of requesting for this

         24  particular incident, I would like to know, in terms

         25  of the pre-conferences that were held, who was part
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          2  of that. Is that something I can get as well?

          3                 CHIEF JENSEN: I will check on that.

          4  We should be able to get a lot of information on the

          5  pre-site survey, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay.

          7                 CHIEF JENSEN: And we have really no

          8  problem giving more notification to other people of

          9  the City Council and that. I don't  think that's a

         10  big problem.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Can I

         12  ask you a question then? Why would you say that

         13  there is a weakness in the legislation when the

         14  permits are issued in notifying the community if you

         15  just said you have not denied any permits or any

         16  applications in the past two years? Maybe when you

         17  get back to the data, if you go back five years,

         18  maybe it's been the past five years, why would you

         19  say that's a weakness in the legislation?

         20                 CHIEF JENSEN: I think there is a

         21  difference between when the permit is issued and

         22  when the blasting occurs. You can issue a permit and

         23  they may not last for a month or two. We give the

         24  notification just before the blast so the people are

         25  aware of it. If you tell the people there is a
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          2  permit issued but they don't blast for two months. I

          3  don't think that does a lot of good. They really

          4  should be told a day or two or three before the

          5  blast. And a lot of times the contractor does not

          6  know when he's going to blast until he hits the hard

          7  rock.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: And

          9  when you say that you notify the community, how is

         10  it that you are notifying the community of when a

         11  blasting is happening?

         12                 CHIEF JENSEN: I believe they post

         13  signs around. If they have contacts from the

         14  pre-site conference they contact those people and

         15  they also put postings around in the buildings that

         16  are nearby.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Right.

         18  But that's, when you post, that's when it's

         19  happening. You're not alerting the community that

         20  it's coming. That's the difference. I think that's

         21  what we're trying to do here is trying to get the

         22  community prepared for something that is very

         23  disruptive, as opposed to, okay, we're going to put

         24  up a sign the day of, the day before, and say that

         25  the last thing is going to happen. There's a
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          2  difference and I really hope that you understand

          3  that.

          4                 CHIEF JENSEN: Well, if you tell them

          5  two months before, I don't know if that's any good.

          6  It may be one day before is no good either. There

          7  has to be some compromise.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

          9  it may be. Because, in fact, if you're not engaging

         10  the community in the conversation along the way,

         11  then notifying them ahead of time, then you know

         12  what? That school that's on the corner can raise

         13  concerns and maybe get to the site or the

         14  construction site or to me as an elected official,

         15  prior to the blasting beginning to express some of

         16  their concerns, the community clinic which is across

         17  the way, which is bringing in elderly people

         18  ambulatorily every day, you know, maybe there's

         19  concerns that they may have prior to the blasting

         20  beginning that we can prepare ourselves for. It's

         21  about preparation.

         22                 CHIEF JENSEN: That is done at the pre

         23  site. A lot of the adjoining hospital, schools, all

         24  should be involved in the pre site, and the local

         25  buildings, the owners of the buildings should be
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          2  involved in pre site and should be given that

          3  information well before blasting at the pre site.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

          5  right now it's not mandatory. That is an issue. I

          6  have an issue. I think it should be mandatory that a

          7  pre conference should involve all of the people that

          8  were mentioned, people in the surrounding area,

          9  tenant associations, community board, if there is a

         10  community clinic, any health facility, any schools.

         11  You know, that is critical.

         12                 And the bill, as it's been drafted

         13  and we're presenting it, provides for notification

         14  both at the time of the application being submitted

         15  and also two days before blasting. So, there's

         16  plenty of notification and preparation that

         17  community can engage in.

         18                 I'm just going to leave it there for

         19  now and if anybody else has any questions? And thank

         20  you very much for your answers.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: We're going to go

         22  to Council Member Gerson, and he'll be following by

         23  Chair Martinez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         25  much, Mr. Chair and Mr. Chair. Just a couple of, a
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          2  few brief follow-ups. At the pre site conference and

          3  the analysis, you know, attendant thereto, is there

          4  routinely an evaluation of the structural condition

          5  of buildings within the 100 feet, beyond the 100

          6  feet and who undertakes that evaluation, FDNY, DOB,

          7  the private owners? How is that factored into the

          8  preparation?

          9                 CHIEF JENSEN: I believe that's done

         10  by an engineering company that's hired by the

         11  private owners, by the contractor. They do a survey

         12  of all the buildings in the area, take pictures,

         13  it's an engineering survey that's done in the area,

         14  basically for insurance purposes.

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: It's done by

         16  the blaster?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm sorry,

         18  Chief?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: It's done by

         20  the blaster.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: By the

         22  blaster.

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: The blaster is

         25  required, it's part of the preparation to evaluate
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          2  the structural condition of all buildings in what

          3  area?

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: The contractor

          5  who hires the blaster, if I'm correct, there's

          6  people from the industry here, does hire and they do

          7  a survey of the buildings.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Within what

          9  area are they required to survey?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Right now we

         11  have a 100 foot radius.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And the survey

         13  is required to assess the structural condition of

         14  the building and possible impacts of the blast?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: Exactly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And is the

         17  contractor required to submit that documentation to

         18  FDNY for your review prior to permit issuance?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: At this time

         20  the contractor keeps that information himself.

         21  That's for his insurance purposes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. Are they

         23  required to submit it to any other City agency like

         24  DOB, that you know of? I don't believe they are but

         25  I just want to make sure.
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: At this time I

          3  don't believe they are. I'd have to check on that

          4  and get back to you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. If you

          6  find out anything to the contrary, my understanding

          7  is just what you said. And I do think that is

          8  something, you know, as we go forward, we might want

          9  to take another look at, for reasons cited by my

         10  colleagues.

         11                 I know in my district here in Lower

         12  Manhattan we have a considerable amount of

         13  construction activity that in some cases probably

         14  does, not probably, in some cases does involve

         15  blasting that is adjoining structures that are

         16  older, even if they're not, you know, official

         17  historic landmarks, could be historic, they have

         18  special structural situations and for all the

         19  obvious reasons, it might make sense to consider a

         20  greater degree of check and balance. It's not just

         21  within the contractor's domain for insurance

         22  reasons. I understand that the contractor has a self

         23  interest to avoid damage to adjoining buildings, but

         24  in doing the balancing act, the assessment act,

         25  because of complexities involved, we should at least
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          2  discuss and consider, you know, a second set of

          3  eyes, whose job is oriented strictly to protection

          4  of structural integrity of buildings.

          5                 There have been situations in my

          6  district where construction in some cases, not

          7  involving blasting, while not causing a collapse,

          8  has caused cracks or other weakening which we're

          9  reckoning with after the fact from experience we

         10  might realize had a little bit of greater preventive

         11  medicine. So, I would ask that you consider that and

         12  that we, you know, continue the dialogue along those

         13  lines. I don't know if you have any further thoughts

         14  on this matter at this time?

         15                 CHIEF JENSEN: I'm sure you will

         16  probably need the expertise of engineers to study

         17  this survey in my department, if that was required,

         18  which right now our blasters are very experienced in

         19  blasting but they're not civil engineers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm sorry, are

         21  you telling me that right now the FDNY does not have

         22  the expertise within its department to review the

         23  engineering documents that the --

         24                 CHIEF JENSEN: Not within the blasting

         25  unit now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

          3                 CHIEF JENSEN: We have very

          4  experienced blasters, but the survey you are talking

          5  about is really conducted by engineers, and for

          6  someone to review that survey, you probably have to

          7  have engineers involved.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, well,

          9  that makes sense. Do you know if DOB has the

         10  expertise within their Department?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         12  My name is Bob LiMandri. I'm First Deputy of

         13  Buildings. How are you?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. How are

         15  you?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         17  Good. Good.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You all have

         19  that expertise, don't you?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         21  So I hear.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I hope so.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         24  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

          3  We have engineers, architects and we also have a set

          4  of forensic engineers that work with us on a

          5  day-to-day basis in your district as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And we've

          7  worked with many of them and they're the top notch

          8  professionals.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         10  Thank you for saying that.

         11                 I would say that one of the

         12  opportunities here by the bill is about

         13  notification, and I do think that there is an

         14  opportunity to bring the Department of Buildings

         15  into the fold in an official capacity on a regular

         16  basis and we would support that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So that's a

         18  good aspect of the bill?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         20  That's right.

         21                 And as the Chief had indicated. In

         22  addition to that, what we thought might be possible

         23  is to look at the requirements that are currently

         24  being satisfied in the current process that FDNY

         25  does with the blaster as with regard to structural
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          2  stability, and also look at what's in the current

          3  option of 613, and perhaps figure out a way to

          4  provide documents at the job site for emergency

          5  purposes. So, for example, the limits that are

          6  provided today, our engineers are comfortable, based

          7  on Bureau of Mines, that's where these numbers come

          8  from, the seismic numbers, they are very

          9  conservative numbers, so from our aspect that

         10  already is the limit, and the Fire Department puts

         11  even a stricter limit on the vibration that any

         12  building can feel from a blast. And throughout the

         13  blasting process, FDNY does a rigorous check to make

         14  sure that the buildings that are adjoining the

         15  property, the seismic readings are not what we call

         16  a reportable incident. Meaning that they don't rise

         17  above their current limits.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But all of

         19  that is after the fact.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         21  You're with me. Hold on one second.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

         24  I'm with you. So, the reason why I bring up that

         25  point is that the whole reason to have the limit and
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          2  to have a very conservative limit, is to protect

          3  buildings.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Right.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI:

          6  So, in essence, the need for having drawings on the

          7  site at the time of blasting is, in our opinion, the

          8  best vehicle to have them. So far, if it gets to a

          9  reportable seismic event, if you will, that FDNY can

         10  notify us, we can bring our engineers on site, we

         11  can look at the documents that were provided to FDNY

         12  in the new system and have those available on site.

         13  And we can review them and have all the data at our

         14  fingertips, so as to if there is a problem, or if

         15  there is a possible problem, that the Department can

         16  react quickly, and be able to have the information

         17  at its fingertips, not in the sense of approving

         18  going forward, but in the event that a reportable

         19  seismic event occurred.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. So, I

         21  agreed with everything you said up to the last five

         22  words, and for all the reasons you express. I

         23  understand that there are limits inherent but we

         24  have a great variation, we have a tremendous

         25  spectrum of building types and conditions. Just the
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          2  other day I was eating lunch next to a wall where

          3  the owner told, in a restaurant where the owner told

          4  me the wall goes back to the early 1700s or the late

          5  1600s here in Lower Manhattan. So in addition to

          6  your enhancing your Department's, the Fire

          7  Department's ability to react to an incident, as you

          8  just described, and I support that, if we have the

          9  survey, if the survey is done and you have the

         10  expertise, wouldn't it help without any significant,

         11  I can't see any significant delay or expense for

         12  your experts to look at the survey in advance and

         13  just make sure that there is nothing that is being

         14  overlooked, nothing that's being missed? Because I

         15  could tell you from experience, we have had too many

         16  reactive situations where foundations, walls, have

         17  cracked and with maybe a little bit afore thought

         18  that could have been avoided to everyone's

         19  betterment.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LiMANDRI: I

         21  think what we would suggest is that we go back and

         22  look at the thresholds that govern this and then we

         23  should look at the proposal in 613. I find it hard

         24  to believe that we'll have anyone sign off on what

         25  you're asking for, from an engineering perspective,
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          2  but there might be something in that where we can

          3  get to meet the needs of what --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. So,

          5  let's do that. And let's just think a little bit

          6  more about preventative medicine in addition to

          7  reactive measures. I think that would wind up

          8  benefitting all involved, and most importantly, you

          9  know, communities and residents who are impacted by

         10  this.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Chairman Martinez.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Yes, I just

         14  wanted to follow up on some of the questioning and

         15  some of the points that Council Member Mark-Viverito

         16  highlighted, in terms of the notification.

         17                 I wasn't too clear until I heard her

         18  line of questioning and your response. So, in

         19  essence you only give notification when you know

         20  that blasting is going to take place, not when

         21  someone actually has a permit to do blasting? In

         22  other words, you wouldn't notify a community board,

         23  hey community board on 47th, 37th and Broadway,

         24  we've issued a permit for blasting; that doesn't

         25  happen?
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          2                 CHIEF JENSEN: At our pre site our

          3  survey, our pre meeting with the community, with the

          4  buildings, with, if there is a school, they would be

          5  notified then, and that would be well before the

          6  blast would actually occur.

          7                 We have a meeting well before the

          8  blast occurs with the community --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: No, no, no. But

         10  issuing the permit, when you issue the permit, is

         11  the community notified? When you issue the permit?

         12                 CHIEF JENSEN: At the meeting that we

         13  discuss with everyone, as the permit is being issued

         14  whether it's right before or right after, it's well

         15  before the blasting, we have the inspection meeting

         16  with all of the interested parties in the area, and

         17  that is around the time the permit is issued, and it

         18  discusses --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Do you hold a

         20  meeting prior to issuing a permit? Or do you hold

         21  the meeting after you issue the permit?

         22                 CHIEF JENSEN: I believe it's prior to

         23  the issuance of the permit, so everyone is on the

         24  same page.

         25                 We set up a procedure of notification
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          2  prior to the issuance of the permit so everyone

          3  knows, is on the same page basically, and we address

          4  all their concerns before the permit is issued.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Yes, but that's

          6  not telling them that a permit has been issued.

          7                 See, what I'm trying to get at is, I

          8  think it's simple --

          9                 CHIEF JENSEN: The meeting is to tell

         10  them that a request was made for a permit, and the

         11  process is going forward to issue a permit, as long

         12  as all the conditions are met.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Okay. But after

         14  that, if you issue a permit, do you notify the

         15  community that the permit has been issued?

         16                 CHIEF JENSEN: I'm not sure I

         17  understand. It's the process.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: I understand

         19  clearly. I understand the process. You've been

         20  really eloquent in explaining the process. I

         21  understand the process. I think we all understand

         22  the process. What I'm having a difficult time

         23  understanding is, giving you a permit, Councilman

         24  Dilan, I gave the Chief a permit; does that happen?

         25                 CHIEF JENSEN: The whole reason for
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          2  the meeting is the process of issuing a permit.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: But during the

          4  meeting the person has now been issued a permit.

          5  During the meeting, according to what I understand,

          6  during the meeting you're letting individuals know

          7  that there may be possible explosives or demolition,

          8  so you bring in all the surrounding stakeholders.

          9                 CHIEF JENSEN: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: But what I'm

         11  trying to get at, if I apply, the meeting occurred

         12  already. Now you decide out of the 17 that were

         13  approved, and 20 something the year prior, when you

         14  issue the permit, when you actually give the permit,

         15  the certificate, when you give them the permit, is

         16  the community notified we've issued the permit for

         17  4791 Broadway?

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF TOBIN: At this point,

         19  no.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: That's what I

         21  wanted to know.

         22                 So, then in fact the bill just

         23  addressed an important component of notification to

         24  a community that a permit for explosive had been

         25  issued in your community, and then, again, it will
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          2  also make sense, understanding procedure, as you

          3  mentioned, the fact that if I did not issue the

          4  permit, that because I have a permit doesn't mean

          5  I'm going to start blasting maybe three months from

          6  there. But it makes sense to also renotify the

          7  community that that permit that was issued that I

          8  already notified you of, now there's actually going

          9  to be blowing, explosives taking place two days from

         10  today.

         11                 So, rather than just having that

         12  notification, as you mentioned, because you do

         13  notify once, prior to the explosive taking place,

         14  letting them know also that the permit has been

         15  issued. That's what I was trying to get at. That's

         16  what I picked up from Council Member Mark-Viverito's

         17  questioning that in fact that it makes a lot of

         18  sense to notify that a permit has been issued, and,

         19  two, when the actual explosive or blowing is going

         20  to take place.

         21                 CHIEF JENSEN: We don't have a problem

         22  with increasing notification in a number of

         23  different ways, either to more people at different

         24  times, that can be set. That is not a problem at

         25  all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: And I'll just

          3  mention, you stated in your opening testimony that,

          4  and then I know there are some other questions, I

          5  would appreciate also, and I'm sure that the sponsor

          6  member of the bill would also, you mentioned the

          7  Fire Code and how some of the provision in the new

          8  Fire Code addressed what we're trying to accomplish

          9  here, but we don't have the Fire Code, so I think if

         10  you could get that to us as soon as possible, that

         11  will also be helpful.

         12                 CHIEF JENSEN: That's fine.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, gentlemen,

         14  at this point in time I understand there is no more

         15  questions, but I just would like to say, one, we

         16  appreciate you coming and sharing the information

         17  that we do have about this whole process with us

         18  today. The objections to certain parts of the bill

         19  were noted, and to an extent we're happy that you

         20  agreed, one, with increasing notification at this

         21  point, and I can say personally the reason why this

         22  hearing is happening so fast is that the Speaker of

         23  this body is very interested in, one, conducting

         24  further oversight as to what happens when explosive

         25  permits are issued, two, how the community is
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          2  notified about it, and three, how we can make it

          3  safer for the City of New York when this practice of

          4  demolition is going to be done, when we use

          5  blasting.

          6                 So, I would imagine that this

          7  Committee, as well as the Speaker's Office, will be

          8  in contact with the Fire Department and all other

          9  relevant City agencies, including the Buildings

         10  Department, to negotiate technical language when it

         11  comes to the specifics of keeping blasting safe.

         12                 I, for one, noted that you certainly

         13  don't believe that this bill will make blasting

         14  safer, and could potentially weaken your current

         15  operating procedures and we certainly do not want to

         16  do that. So, I would imagine that we would discuss

         17  those before we proceed in this bill.

         18                 I want to thank you all for coming,

         19  and at this point we'll hear from the general public

         20  on this bill.

         21                 Okay, first we'll hear from Mr. Henry

         22  Kita; Mr. Edward Boles and Mr. Ned Seelhorst. And

         23  you can begin your testimony in the order you were

         24  called. If you have any written testimony, please

         25  hand it to the Sergeant-At-Arms.
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          2                 Mr. Kita.

          3                 MR. KITA: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: When the light is

          5  off, the mic. is on.

          6                 MR. KITA: Okay. Good afternoon, Mr.

          7  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Henry

          8  Kita. I am the Senior Vice President of the Building

          9  Trades Employers Association of New York City,

         10  otherwise referred to in this testimony as the

         11  "BTEA."

         12                 The BTEA represents 25 contractors

         13  associations comprised of 1,500 construction

         14  managers, general contractors and subcontractors who

         15  employ the over 100,000 members of the Building and

         16  Construction Trades Council of New York.

         17                 The BTEA represents the management

         18  half of the construction industry partnership with

         19  our partners from the labor sector and Building

         20  Construction Trades Council.

         21                 I am here this afternoon to provide

         22  some comments to express some reservations on behalf

         23  of the BTEA and its members regarding Intro. No.

         24  613, local law to amend the Administrative Code of

         25  the City of New York in relation to the use of
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          2  explosives for demolition and excavation.

          3                 While the BTEA and its member

          4  associations and contractors are compassionate

          5  advocates for safety in all facets and phases of

          6  construction activity. We believe that Intro. 613 as

          7  proposed over-reaches and over-regulates in the name

          8  of safety and creates a system for the use of

          9  explosives and will potentially hamstring certain

         10  construction processes in the area of excavation and

         11  demolition.

         12                 As prescribed in Intro. 613, the

         13  various notice requirements and submission processes

         14  for various City agencies will make the use of

         15  explosives in construction difficult, if not

         16  impossible, in some instances. Notifications to

         17  every individual or tenant within a 250 foot radius

         18  plus every elected official from the State level on

         19  down will be cumbersome and practical to

         20  contractors.

         21                 This bill also certainly slow

         22  construction and potentially add to pollution,

         23  increase noise in construction in some instances.

         24  The unintended side effect would be caused by some

         25  contractors who might be driven to alternate
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          2  construction strategies, such as hoe ramming,

          3  drilling and splitting that might have to be used as

          4  an alternate means to explosives in the excavation

          5  demolition processes because of some of these

          6  onerous notification requirements.

          7                 In addition, we believe that this

          8  bill as currently structured might complicate the

          9  efficient completion of Public Works infrastructure

         10  projects, which we believe are covered under this

         11  legislation but are not necessarily part of the

         12  intended breath of this bill.

         13                 As we read this bill, the Department

         14  of Buildings would have an oversight and permit rule

         15  in these Public Works projects where they have not

         16  in the past.

         17                 As it stands now, the Department of

         18  Buildings has little, if any, role in the issuance

         19  of permits or oversight for this type of work.

         20                 With personnel resources severely

         21  taxed in the current construction boom, it is

         22  questionable as to whether or not the DOB's

         23  resources should be stretched to cover these Public

         24  Works projects when they are already overseen by

         25  other arms of the City and State government, such as
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          2  the Fire Department, as we heard a few minutes ago.

          3                 Finally, it appears that in its

          4  current form, Intro. 613 is silent on what will

          5  happen if the prescribed agencies charged with

          6  reviewing the contractors' plan, such as the DEP and

          7  DOT, MTA, Con Ed, et cetera, do not supply their

          8  comments to the FDNY within 30 days. If these

          9  various entities are not diligent in responding

         10  within 30 days, what will happen? Will a contractor

         11  not be issued a permit until they do?

         12                 Make no mistake that in our

         13  estimation this portion of the legislation will

         14  provide the impetus for increases in the cost of

         15  construction, if not revisited and revised.

         16                 We would suggest that if this

         17  legislation move forward, that a provision be

         18  included that would have the plan be considered as

         19  approved if the agencies do not respond within the

         20  30 days.

         21                 The BTEA and its members stand ready

         22  to work hand-in-glove with the City Council and City

         23  Administration to make this construction industry in

         24  New York City the safest in the world. However, we

         25  believe that Intro. 613 needs to be closely

                                                            79

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS AND FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE

          2  re-examined by the Council in order to consider our

          3  comments and points made here today.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Mr. Boles.

          6                 MR. BOLES: Good afternoon, City

          7  Council members. My name is Lieutenant Eddie Boles,

          8  Treasurer of the UFOA, and I'm speaking on behalf of

          9  John McDonald, President of the Uniformed Fire

         10  Officers Association, representing the Lieutenants,

         11  Captains, Battalion Chiefs, Deputy Chiefs,

         12  Supervising Fire Marshals and Medical Officers of

         13  the FDNY.

         14                 I commend the Speaker, Council Member

         15  Mark-Viverito and the Committees for addressing the

         16  amendments outlined in Intro. 613, in relation to

         17  the use of explosives for demolition and excavation.

         18  In the midst of a construction boom in New York City

         19  and in the aftermath of some recent construction

         20  tragedy, such as 130 Liberty Street, it is important

         21  that our City's legislative body carefully

         22  scrutinizes the City's Administrative Code to help

         23  ensure the health and safety of all of our citizens,

         24  residents, workers and especially first responders.

         25                 The amendments that are outlined in
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          2  Intro. 613 are worthwhile, yet we would like to make

          3  a few recommendations that will provide greater

          4  awareness of firefighters and which will also be

          5  beneficial to the citizens my members serve, which

          6  is I want to bring up certain things that I was

          7  surprised that wasn't asked and hopefully will be

          8  asked in the future.

          9                 First of all, notification to local

         10  fire companies. Where notifications are described in

         11  Section 27-4039 of the Administrative Code, we would

         12  like it mandated that the local fire companies in

         13  the vicinity of any blasting operation be notified,

         14  especially on the day of actual blasting

         15  commencement.

         16                 You talked about the pre site

         17  conferences, the question I was hoping you would ask

         18  is, are the local fire companies invited to the pre

         19  site conference.

         20                 Surveys. As described in Section

         21  27-4039.2 of the Administrative Code, we would like

         22  that copies of the survey and photographs be shared

         23  with local fire companies so they may be better

         24  prepared to formulate a more effective operational

         25  plan.
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          2                 Additionally, the local fire

          3  companies will be furnished with a report after the

          4  blasting take place of the structural integrity of

          5  any of the buildings within the 250 foot radius of

          6  the blasting operation.

          7                 Number three, explosive plan of

          8  operation and danger zone, as described in Section

          9  27-4039.2 e and f of the Administrative Code, that a

         10  comprehensive plan be provided to the local fire

         11  companies for informational and preparedness use.

         12                 Number four, interagency protocol, as

         13  described in 27-4039.3 of the Administrative Code,

         14  that the results of this operational protocol be

         15  disseminated to the local fire companies for

         16  preparedness training and operational tactics.

         17                 Many of the recommendation we

         18  outlined here make it seem obvious, however, we feel

         19  it is imperative to have on record, I want to

         20  emphasize, on record, the importance of our Fire

         21  Service units to have such vital information.

         22                 We wish again to applaud the efforts

         23  of the various committees on working on Intro. 613

         24  and the opportunity for me to speak today, and I'm

         25  available for any questions that members may have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. If you could

          3  just restate your name before you begin. I'm sorry.

          4                 MR. SEELHORST: Certainly. Certainly.

          5  My name is Ned Seelhorst. I work with Terra

          6  Dinamica. We are a blasting contractor in the City.

          7  We also do consulting work, pretty much worldwide.

          8  We've been involved in projects all over.

          9                 A lot of what I had to say today has

         10  already been said by the Fire Department, so this is

         11  going to be brief. I'd just like to hit a few key

         12  points. First of all, that this is the most

         13  regulated area that I've ever been involved in. It's

         14  somewhat bittersweet for us in that we have

         15  inspectors on our jobs every day looking over our

         16  shoulders. The Fire Department is always there, that

         17  doesn't happen very often any other place. The sweet

         18  part of that I guess would be that the inspectors

         19  all come out of the field. They all have blasters

         20  licenses. They ask good questions. They know what to

         21  ask and they are very competent at what they do.

         22                 The question came up earlier about

         23  the difference between a blaster's license any other

         24  place in the states and New York City. The best way

         25  I can answer that is that I have held eight licenses
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          2  throughout the country. When I came to New York City

          3  that didn't mean anything. I still had to put in my

          4  two years. They want to know you have the

          5  experience. They want to know you're qualified, but

          6  they also, it's also a test of character. They want

          7  to know if you earned or can responsibly hold a

          8  license in it. That's all about that.

          9                 The only other thing I have to touch

         10  on is the 250 foot radius. As an industry, explosive

         11  industry, we generally keep, try to keep a very low

         12  profile of what we do and where we do it, and the

         13  number one reason for this is security.

         14                 I think you are opening a can of

         15  worms if you try to notify people, everything within

         16  250 feet. It's basically saying, hey, explosives are

         17  going to be on this site at a certain time at a

         18  certain day and you get spectators and probably

         19  other people that you really don't want to know, but

         20  you will be there (sic).

         21                 Just a quick example. We blasted at

         22  the World Trade Center, I think there were no less

         23  than 11 camera crews out there that day, spectators

         24  all over the place, cameras out of every window.

         25  Most of the comments afterwards were how did you
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          2  like the blasting? Or what did you think of the

          3  blasting? Most people said what blasting? I mean, we

          4  try to keep it as quiet and comfortable for

          5  residents as possible.

          6                 But thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. First,

          8  I just want to say to Mr. Boles that I guess that's

          9  what we get for assuming that local firehouses are

         10  notified. And I would think that your

         11  recommendations will be taken back and potentially

         12  included.

         13                 And I want to say to Mr. Seelhorst, I

         14  think that as probably the only one here that is an

         15  expert in this subject, we, one, certainly

         16  appreciate you coming down and providing your

         17  opinion on how you do your work, because we

         18  certainly do not know how to do it. But I think

         19  we're also of the opinion that, you know, maybe a

         20  local principal nearby should know that this is

         21  going on so that maybe she doesn't conduct a fire

         22  drill that day so she doesn't have 40 kids walking

         23  down the block while this is happening. We think

         24  that individual deserves the right to know.

         25                 We also feel, and we thought that
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          2  this was the Fire Department practice, that the

          3  local firehouse, who is probably going to be

          4  responsible for taking care of anything that goes

          5  wrong at that site should have the right to know.

          6                 For the most part there hasn't been,

          7  you know, many disastrous incidents as it relates to

          8  blasting, so we'd like to commend the industry for

          9  that. But I think we want to take a comprehensive

         10  approach, one, to make sure that the agencies of

         11  this City, and the burden here is the communication

         12  on the agencies, we haven't put any further burdens

         13  on the industry to notify people, but we feel that

         14  the agency should, and with all the future

         15  development, and I'm sure we're going to have two

         16  major demolitions with our stadiums that are about

         17  to come down, we certainly need to do things to

         18  safeguard this City. So, I just want to say that to

         19  you, and we appreciate coming down.

         20                 I know that the Bill's sponsor,

         21  Council Member Viverito, has a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

         23  you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 I just want to reiterate just what

         25  you said, because I am amazed, Lieutenant, you're
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          2  sitting here, that we make assumptions. I mean, on

          3  this particular site where the occurrence happened

          4  there was a firehouse right on that block. And I

          5  assumed, and I guess in assuming that the firehouse

          6  in the immediate area is somehow involved in the

          7  issuance of the permits or in the inspection on

          8  site. So, we really had no idea, and I think you

          9  bringing this to our attention demonstrates that

         10  there are problems with the way the current

         11  regulations exist, and that the need for legislation

         12  to improve upon it is very much of importance, and

         13  it's very relevant I think. So, I want to thank you

         14  for being here. I think it's also a certain amount

         15  of bravery when you represent members that are

         16  within the Fire Department and you're being critical

         17  of the institution. So, I want to thank you for that

         18  and raising awareness on that.

         19                 And then on the other front with the

         20  other two people who presented testimony, and this

         21  is my cynical side coming out, you know, I could

         22  understand where both of you would have concerns

         23  with anything that would impact on your bottom line,

         24  and anything that you may consider as adding to the

         25  length of time on a construction project, et cetera,
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          2  is something that you wouldn't look favorably

          3  towards, and this is something that very much is

          4  important as a way of improving safety.

          5                 When you made the correlation, sir --

          6  I forget your name. The one that represents the

          7  blasting company. When you talk about the World

          8  Trade Center site, I mean that really is not a

          9  residential area for the most part, and when you're

         10  talking about, again, institutions that are in the

         11  immediate vicinity of construction sites, when

         12  you're talking about residential, when you're

         13  talking about public schools, when you're talking

         14  about children, when you're talking about elderly,

         15  et cetera, it's a great discomfort to have any type

         16  of extensive blasting and it puts them at safe -- in

         17  harm's way potentially. We want to minimize all of

         18  that. So, I think it is good, the concerns that you

         19  raised, and seeing what ways, you know, some sort of

         20  accommodation, if relevant, can be taken into

         21  account. So, with that, thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thank you.

         23  Thank you, gentlemen. Thank you all for your time

         24  today.

         25                 Okay, the final panel will consist of

                                                            88

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS AND FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE

          2  Dr. Douglas Anderson, Adele DeMartino, and Mr. Bryan

          3  Papillon. And you can please feel free to correct me

          4  before you begin your testimony. Okay, you can begin

          5  in the order that you were called.

          6                 DR. ANDERSON: Okay, I am Dr. Douglas

          7  Anderson, a geophysicist working for Parsons

          8  Brinckerhoff, an infrastructure engineering company

          9  in New York City, and have been involved in blasting

         10  seismology for about 25 years. And I'm here

         11  basically because the legislation has some very

         12  strong points, but as you know ambiguities and

         13  unintended consequences can come out of such

         14  legislation. There are a number of infrastructure

         15  projects that will involve blasting, such as the

         16  East Side Access, the TransHudson Express, the

         17  Number 7 line, and the Second Avenue Subway. All of

         18  those involve blasting, and all of those are in very

         19  congested areas. For instance, the East Side Access

         20  will be running underneath Park Avenue with many

         21  high-rise buildings. The inspections, just a side

         22  note here, I have received from the Society of

         23  Explosive Engineers, they asked me to hand out a

         24  letter that indicates that they recommend that New

         25  York follow the fire protection 495 as is noted, and
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          2  they have sent a copy of that also. That was just a

          3  request that they had for me.

          4                 But inspecting all of the structures

          5  around Park Avenue and with 250 feet in this

          6  legislation, there is no limit indicated on this.

          7  So, in principal, one could say that all of the 40,

          8  50 story buildings in that area would have to have

          9  all of their rooms inspected, and that would take

         10  several years, in fact, to do, and would be

         11  impractical.

         12                 Furthermore, post-blast inspections

         13  are required, which would double that amount of

         14  money. And, of course, it's not just a money thing,

         15  but it's in terms of having a project moving along

         16  properly. And that it also says notification of all

         17  occupants.

         18                 I understand the reason for the

         19  legislation has to do with blasting that was in a

         20  residential area, however, those areas that are not

         21  residential or may have many buildings that are

         22  high-rise, it would be rather impractical to notify

         23  all of the occupants before every blast.

         24                 The applicability of this, it's not

         25  clear, it says it would be put into force 90 days
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          2  after approval, however, it's not clear whether

          3  projects that are ongoing currently under contract

          4  would come under this provision.

          5                 The acceptable levels of vibration is

          6  listed in there also, and that is rather ambiguous,

          7  it doesn't reference the Fire Department Code

          8  specifically, and they had mentioned the two inches

          9  per second.

         10                 If I may, I can explain a little bit

         11  more about the two inches per second in the Bureau

         12  of Mines. That is based on research that was done

         13  for threshold damage for low-rise wood frame

         14  residential structures. Most high-rise structures

         15  are much more resistant to damage from vibration and

         16  don't amplify vibrations the same way that low-rise

         17  residential structures do.

         18                 One final point is that the plan to

         19  increase to 250 feet would in fact mean that tunnels

         20  that were being done at 600 foot depth would, in

         21  fact, come under this same kind of inspection

         22  criterium. So, that's basically what I have. Thank

         23  you very much for your attention.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thank you.

         25  And we're going to go to Mr. Papillon.
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          2                 MR. PAPILLON: Thank you. My name is

          3  Bryan Papillon. I am Vice President of Explo Powder,

          4  that is the company who delivers the explosives to

          5  the projects in the five boroughs, when and where

          6  they occur. I'm also a technology director for the

          7  explosive manufacturer of the products that we use

          8  in the City, as well as a license blaster in the

          9  City, the State of Pennsylvania, and civil engineer.

         10  So, my background, I've been in the explosive

         11  industry for over 30 years. Twenty-five of those

         12  involved in one way or the other in New York City.

         13                 One thing, I have a prepared

         14  statement that I gave to the Sergeant-At-Arms that I

         15  will read quickly, but I think most importantly from

         16  what I've heard this afternoon, I think it's very

         17  important that those of you on the Council who are

         18  maybe have some real concerns and misunderstandings

         19  about how this process takes place should really,

         20  really take the Fire Department's invitation to

         21  observe a blast, to go to the job site and see that

         22  process. I think the information that you will gain,

         23  without words even, without questions and answers

         24  just from your own eyes and ears will give you a lot

         25  of insight as to how to sort of proceed with these
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          2  regulations. Of anything I've said, I think that's

          3  the most important thing you could do.

          4                 I'm interested, somewhat may be

          5  afraid but definitely interested.

          6                 MR. PAPILLON: I would say this, that

          7  the project at South Ferry that involved blasting,

          8  at the times that I was there, and again that is not

          9  a residential area necessarily, but a lot of people,

         10  all times of the day moving in and out of both the

         11  subway and the Staten Island Ferry, when blasting

         12  was occurring there, 20, 30 feet below the surface,

         13  which was open and covered with plates, there were

         14  protective barriers, but blasts would occur and

         15  people would not even miss a step in their stride.

         16                 I don't think that's most people's

         17  perception of what blasting is. So, to observe it

         18  with your own eyes and ears I think is crucial.

         19                 As I said earlier we deliver, as

         20  Explo Powder, the explosives to the contractors in

         21  New York City. We are not the contractor itself,

         22  which is where much of these proposed changes are

         23  focused. We are knowledgeable, however, about how

         24  industrial explosives sold and used throughout many

         25  parts of the world, including most major cities. We
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          2  appreciate the opportunity to share our preliminary

          3  views on the proposed legislation.

          4                 In New York City, industrial

          5  explosives are used to excavate rock for water

          6  tunnels, site work, subways and other construction.

          7                 I also want to add that demolition

          8  has been used in conjunction with excavation in many

          9  of the questions and answers today. There have been

         10  very, very little explosive used for demolition. If

         11  your understanding of demolition is what mine is and

         12  that means the removal of a building, it has been, I

         13  believe, five years or more since explosives have

         14  been used in the City for demolition. If you want to

         15  use demolition as a word in place of excavation

         16  where you're demolishing the rock, then I

         17  understand, but I want to make sure you don't

         18  confuse the two. It's important.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: New York City

         20  does not demolish building per se like we saw the

         21  Sanders Hotel, for example, they just demolished the

         22  whole thing down.

         23                 MR. PAPILLON: There have been fuel

         24  storage tanks in Brooklyn that explosives, small

         25  amount of explosives were used to bring those
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          2  storage tanks down five years ago. I don't know

          3  what's planned for Shea Stadium. I do not know what

          4  is planned for there. We have not had any

          5  communication with anyone in that regard.

          6                 In all places in the United States,

          7  including New York City, industrial explosives are

          8  licensed and regulated by the Bureau of Alcohol,

          9  Tobacco and Firearms, as well as the Department of

         10  Transportation. In the City we're regulated by the

         11  explosives unit of the New York City Fire

         12  Department. By far, this is the most stringent and

         13  effective program in the world. They are well ahead

         14  as much proposed federal legislation over the years

         15  has been practiced in the City for a long time. The

         16  City (sic) works for a couple of important reasons.

         17  I will also say that the marking and identification

         18  that is used here is unique to anywhere in the

         19  world.

         20                 The business itself requires very

         21  specialized knowledge and this Department is very

         22  knowledgeable. The inspectors have worked with

         23  explosives and blasting for many years, many of them

         24  are former blasters themselves. These inspectors

         25  know all the parties involved, as all the parties
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          2  are subject to their direct authority, which you

          3  heard. They have full control.

          4                 The proposed legislation is major. It

          5  discusses involving three to five more agencies plus

          6  councils, community boards and state bodies.

          7  Involves an arithmetic increase in notices, reports,

          8  procedures, meetings, applications, studies and

          9  protocol. Some of the legislation has significant

         10  security concerns.

         11                 As Ned mentioned, the blasting

         12  community tries to keep a low profile for security

         13  reasons. One single regulatory body can do it

         14  better, way better, especially when they have the

         15  expertise, the knowledge and the full authority, if

         16  the City believes that additional legislation is

         17  necessary, then I encourage you to be under the

         18  control of the FDNY. Thank you for the opportunity

         19  to speak. The proposed legislation will involve many

         20  aspects of how excavation and construction is done

         21  in New York City today. It will require careful

         22  study and we appreciate the opportunity to be part

         23  of it today and going forward. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         25                 Ms. DeMartino, I understand you have
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          2  testimony on an item that is not on today's agenda;

          3  is that correct?

          4                 MS. DeMARTINO: That's correct. But I

          5  think it's an interesting seguay to go from a

          6  discussion about preparation for new development to

          7  dealing with overdevelopment in college point.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: The Committee is

          9  not going to hear testimony on that specific thing,

         10  but what I can do is after I've recessed the meeting

         11  I can take a few minutes to talk to you and we'll

         12  take it in and refer it to the pertinent committee

         13  which I believe would be the City Council's Land Use

         14  Committee and to the local member of the City

         15  Council who is here. But I know you have been

         16  waiting here throughout the whole time, so I can't

         17  do it as a matter of record for the Committee, but I

         18  can take a few minutes after and sit with you and

         19  listen to what you have to say.

         20                 MS. DeMARTINO: I appreciate it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thank you.

         22                 I just want to acknowledge that we've

         23  received testimony from the Real Estate Board of New

         24  York that will be entered into the record, as well

         25  as testimony from the General Contractors
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          2  Association of New York, that will be entered into

          3  the record as well. And before I conclude the

          4  hearing today on Intro. 613, Intro. 613 will be laid

          5  aside or will be laid over.  And with that, if there

          6  are no more questions from my colleagues who are not

          7  here anymore (laughter), I will adjourn this

          8  meeting.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 3:16 p.m.)
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